ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 29, 2005
8:05 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Representative JimElKkins
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Bob Lynn
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 201

"An Act relating to an application for a permanent fund dividend
for a nenber of the arnmed forces of the United States serving on
active duty outside of the state; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 183

"An Act relating to the use of canpaign contributions for shared
canpaign activity expenses and to reinbursenent of those
expenses. "

- MOVED CSHB 183( STA) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 170

"An Act relating to the qualifications of public nenbers of the
Public Enployees’ Retirement Board and the Alaska Teachers
Retirenment Board."

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 177
"An Act relating to enployee and enployer contributions to the

teachers' retirenment system and the public enployees' retirenent
system and providing for an effective date."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 29, 2005



- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO 191

"An Act relating to defined contribution systenms for nenbers of
the teachers' retirement system and the public enployees’
retirement system and providing for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 201

SHORT TI TLE: PERM FUND DI VI DEND APPS OF M LI TARY
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) CHENAULT

03/ 04/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

03/ 04/ 05 (H M.V, STA

03/ 17/ 05 (H) M.V AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 17/ 05 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 17/ 05 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

03/ 18/ 05 (H M.V RPT 6DP

03/ 18/ 05 (H DP: THOMAS, GRUENBERG Cl SSNA, ELKINS,
MCGUI RE, LYNN

03/ 29/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 183
SHORT TI TLE: CAMPAI GN FI NANCE: SHARED EXPENSES
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) HAWKER

02/ 28/ 05 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 28/ 05 (H) STA, JUD
03/ 29/ 05 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 170
SHORT TITLE: PUB EMPLOYEES/ TEACHERS RETI REVENT BOARDS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) KELLY

02/ 23/ 05 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 23/ 05 (H) STA, FIN

03/ 22/ 05 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 22/ 05 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 22/ 05 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 29/ 05 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

SHARALYN WRI GHT, St aff

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 29, 2005



to Representative M ke Chenault

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Introduced HB 201 on Dbehalf of
Representative Chenault, sponsor.

SHARON BARTON, Director

Per manent Fund Di vi dend Divi si on

Al aska Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regarding the PFD and HB
201.

CHRI S POAG

Cvil Division

Al aska Departnent of Law

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions regarding the legalities
of HB 201.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 183 as sponsor.

BROOKE M LES, Executive Director

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion (APQC)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on behalf of APOC during
t he hearing on HB 183.

HEATH HI LYARD, St aff

to Representative Mke Kelly

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Revi ewed the previous discussion of HB 170
fromprior hearings on behalf of Representative Kelly, sponsor.

PAT VELLI NGTON, El ected nenber

Publ i ¢ Enpl oyees' Retirenent (PERS) Board

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions on behal f
of the PERS Board during the hearing on HB 170.

JAY DULANY

Eagl e River, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself during the
hearing on HB 170.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 29, 2005



KEVIN RI TCH E

Al aska Muni ci pal League (AM.)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified and answered questions on behal f
of AML during the hearing on HB 170.

SAM TRI VETTE, Presi dent

Retired Public Enpl oyees of Al aska (RPEA)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of RPEA during the
hearing on HB 170.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:05:00 AM Represent ati ves
El kins, Gatto, Gardner, and Seaton were present at the call to
order. Representative Ranras arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

8:06: 31 AM

CHAI R SEATON di scussed the neeting on Thursday, March 24. He
clarified that the conmttee nenbers made  si de-by-side
conparisons of other bills towards producing the House State
Affairs Standing Conmttee's forthcom ng PERS/ TRS bill.

HB 201- PERM FUND DI VI DEND APPS CF M LI TARY

8:07:28 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 201, "An Act relating to an application for a
permanent fund dividend for a nenber of the arned forces of the
United States serving on active duty outside of the state; and
providing for an effective date."”

8:07:29 AM

SHARALYN WRI GHT, Staff to Representative M ke Chenault, Al aska
State Legislature, introduced HB 201 on behalf of Representative
Chenaul t, sponsor. She explained that the purpose of the bill
is to permt a person who has a power of attorney for an active
mlitary duty person who's stationed outside of the State of
Al aska to sign and file an Al aska Permanent Fund D vi dend (PFD)
application for the said individual. She presented an exanple

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 29, 2005



of an Al askan nman stationed in Japan who was then deployed to
Af ghani stan, and the PFD Division could not contact hinm he
didn't know that there was a problem with his PFD application
until he returned to Al aska.

M5. WRI GHT conti nued:

So if sonmeone back hone had a power of attorney, that
power of attorney allows you to nmake absolutely life-
changi ng decisions: you can sign for a bank account,
you can sign for real estate, you can nake all Kkinds
of deci sions. And in the whole scope of things, the
[ PFD] shouldn't fit at the top or the bottom of that

list; it should fit sonmewhere in the mddle. And we
shoul d all ow soneone ... who's a trusted person in the
mlitary person's life, ... to sign that [PFD
application so that [the PFD check] cones in a tinely
manner .

8. 09: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER renarked that there is the potential for
problenms if one or nore persons applies on behalf of the person
who's on active duty. She asked what would happen if the
service person never got the noney because soneone el se signed
for the PFD check and took it.

M5. WRIGHT replied, "I wuld not imgine a responsible
i ndi vidual having nore than one power of attorney, ... because
when you have a power of attorney and you decide to change that,
you also are required to revoke any previous powers of
attorney."”

8:11: 06 AM

CHAIR SEATON conmented that the bill would only allow the
individual with the power of attorney to apply for the PFD. He
asked who would be held responsible for fraud if a person
applied for a PFD on behalf of another person who is not
eligible to receive the PFD.

M5. WRIGHT responded that she believed that this issue would
dealt with by the PFD Division.

8:13: 23 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 29, 2005



SHARON BARTON, Director, Permanent Fund D vidend Division
Al aska Departnent of Revenue, explained that when filling out
the PFD application, the power of attorney is attesting to all
of the information on the application being true so far as that
person knows it to be true.

CHAI R SEATON asked if the PFD D vision sees any problens with HB
201.

M5. BARTON replied that logistically the division has no problem

with the bill, as it won't put a large new workload on the
personnel . She noted that the division is concerned about
possi ble fraud situations. |In addition, she pointed out:

W are also concerned about it being offered broadly
to all mlitary. Qur mlitary nenbers across the
wor | d are filing very successfully this
application period for their dividends. We know t hat
those folks in Irag or Afghanistan, places like that,
don't have the ready access to nmil and to the
Internet, although they do, alnost all of them have
access eventually. ... W have a lot of support built
into our processing system now to allow plenty of
tinme, al | the time they need, to get their
applications in when they return to a place in the
world they can file or can supply that additional
information they need. But if the commttee is
interested in meking this available to mlitary
menbers, we would ask that you consider at any rate
restricting it to those who are receiving hostile fire
or imm nent danger pay....

8:16:59 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked if Ms. Barton had any suggested |anguage for
t hat .

M5. BARTON responded that she did not have it with her but would
be available to work on the | anguage for an anendnent.

8:17:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked Ms. Barton if she was inplying that
she didn't see the need for this bill

M5. BARTON answered that division personnel have heard sone
conplaints from people who have been frustrated with the current

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 29, 2005



system nostly from famly nenbers of the mlitary servicenen.
She noted that she personally only knew of one particular such
case. She said, "Staff tell ne when | poll them that they' ve
been able to work through every situation with the calls and
letters and emails that they've received about the mlitary.

It nostly has to do with the delay in receiving the PFD check
when they get back to the States. ... But in no case are we
denyi ng anyone."

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS commented that he felt HB 201 would nake
it easier for mlitary personnel that are in harms way to apply
for the PFD
8:20: 08 AM

CHRIS POAG Gvil Division, Al aska Departnent of Law, expl ai ned:

A typical power of attorney has two parties: one's
the principal - that's the person who's represented,
the mlitary person who goes overseas; and the other's
the agent, or attorney-in-fact - that's the person
who's going to do any benefit applications on behalf
of the principal. In that scenario, ... the agent's
responsi bl e in a [ PFD) application to make
representations about whether or not the principal is
in fact eligible. ... W have to assune that they'l

get that information directly from the principa

i nstead of from some sort of second-hand source. But
when they neake that information available in the
application and they turn that application in, it nore
becones a question probably in a prosecution sense of
who nmade the representation.

MR. POAG explained that either the principal provided the agent
with false information, or the agent mde a mstake on the
appl i cation. Fraud refers to false information that is
purposefully provided, he noted, not unknow ngly provided.
Under HB 201, he said:

This is just going to be very hard, if not inpossible
to prosecute because you're going to have people
pointing the finger at each other saying, 'Wll, they

told me this,” and 'They told ne that.' And it's
going to be real hard to prove beyond a reasonable
doubt t hat anybody know ngly made fal se

representations in that [PFD]. So | think pretty nuch

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 29, 2005



we'll be giving up any prosecutions in these cases
It would be very difficult to do otherw se.

8:22: 07 AM
MR POAG conti nued:

As you know, when you file for your [PFD] application,
you have to nake a representation that the information
is correct, and that you intend to remain in Alaska
indefinitely, or, if you re Qutside, that you intend
to return and remain indefinitely. Cbviously an agent
on behalf of a principal can't make intentiona
statenents for them So we also gave up that portion
of our application requirenent.

8:23:54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that a crooked person could file as
power of attorney for sonmeone and have the PFD check placed into
his or her own account. He asked what the PFD D vision could do
about this.

MR. POAG repli ed:

It depends a lot on the form of the power of attorney
that's been drafted. And it depends probably a little
bit on the way this legislation's drafted as well. A
typi cal power of attorney that has normal powers, not
specific powers, ... would be entitled to [have] that
check ... put into the account that they designated;
they are [the] agent, they make decisions as to where
the noney goes and how it's spent and all of those
sorts of decisions. So that crooked person could end
up with [the principal's] PFD in their [own] account.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked who becones the liable person in this
case.

MR POAG replied that it wuld depend on who nade the
m srepresentation. He commented that the state will have a
difficult time determning which one was lying if they are
bl am ng one anot her.

8: 25: 54 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 29, 2005



MR POAG in response to Representative Gatto, stated that a
person cannot fill out a PFD application for his/her spouse.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented that the bill would then be
saying that the power of attorney trunps nmarriage.

MR. PQOAG responded:

| think this is probably why ... allowng power of
attorneys has been a sort of a guarded exception.
It's been for, essentially, a parent on behalf of a
child [to make] ... representations as to whether or
not their child intends to return or remain in Al aska
and stay there indefinitely. And this [bill] is a
situation where we're broadening the scope of that
exception.

MR. POAG pointed out that current law allows for a mlitary
person to late file after he/she has returned fromthe hot zone.

8.28: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated that Fort Wainwight and Fort
Ri chardson will both be having |arge deploynents this year, and
he saw that the deploynment newsletters address issues |ike how
to give one's spouse the power of attorney. He asked for
confirmation that the bill would make the power of attorney

applicable specifically to the PFD because it cones under the
purview of the State of Al aska.

MR POAG replied that current PFD law says that only the
individual can apply for his or her own PFD, and the only
exceptions for that are for a child or for sonebody who is

i ncapaci t at ed. He stated that HB 201 would create a third
exception for mlitary persons. He noted, "The bill as drafted
doesn't have any 'hot =zone' |anguage. As drafted it would be

anybody in the mlitary outside of the United States."”

8:29: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS commented that this was a particularly
timely bill because of the large deploynents scheduled for this
year.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if there is any reason that those
i ndi vi dual s being deployed this fall couldn't apply for the PFD
before they | eave.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 29, 2005



MR. POAG replied that they can apply between January 1 and March
31.

8:30: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if a mlitary person doesn't cone
back, for any reason, if the spouse or power of attorney can
continue to apply for the PFD on behalf of that person year
after year.

MR. POAG replied that if the principal abandoned his/her intent
to return to Alaska, then the agent or spouse should not be
filing on the principal's behalf. He stated that if the agent
was representing in the application that the principal was
outside of Alaska, at some point the principal would no |onger
qualify for an Qutside allowable absence exception. He said
that if the |anguage of this bill were to be drafted such that
the agent can only file while the principal is in the hot zone
outside of the United States, then that would at sone point
expire, and the agent would probably be caught. He noted, "It
woul d depend on the drafting of this bill."

8:32:12 AM

MR. POAG in response to Chair Seaton, reiterated that as the
bill is currently drafted, it allows anyone on active duty
outside of the United States to apply through a power of
attorney, even if the individual is not in a hot zone and is
gone for a long tine. He said that if the bill were limted to
hot zones, it wuld be easier for the PFD Dwvision to
i nvestigate possible frauds.

8:33:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there is any place in the world
that does not qualify as a hot zone.

MR. POAG replied that as he understood it, being in a hot zone
woul d require a person to qualify for a certain type of mlitary
pay status.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the term "hot zone" is actually
defi ned.

MR. POAG replied yes; it's an official pay status that one
receives in the military.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 29, 2005



CHAI R SEATON cl osed public testinony.
8:34:32 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked Ms. Wight to address the issue of the
inability to enforce an intent to return provision if the PFD
application is conpleted through a power of attorney.

M5. WRI GHT presented an exanple of an individual who defrauded
the PFD Division and was reported, but the division never
pursued the case. She said, "I guess in life we have to realize
that if sonmebody is out to circunvent the system they're going
to circunvent it no matter what rule we come up with, no matter
what changes we nake." She reiterated that the purpose of the
bill is to allow the mlitary personnel to have an easier way to
apply for the PFD. She noted that hot zone pay can change
qui ckly. She said, "I strongly believe this 'hot zone' |anguage
should not be in [the bill]." Representative Chenault's office
devotes a lot of tinme to mlitary-PFD problens, she stated.

8:38:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS asked why the power of attorney coul dn't
specify that it was only good for applying for the dividend.

M5. WRIGHT answered that there is an area on the power of
attorney [application] that would allow a person to wite in
that the agent has permssion to file for a PFD.

8:40: 46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS reiterated that soldiers from Al aska w |
be depl oyed overseas this year and the mlitary has recommended
that the soldiers set up a power of attorney. He enphasi zed
that the bill should be passed quickly.

M5. WRIGHT concurred with Representative Ranras and said the
bill is long overdue. She said, "W have afforded the [PFD]
Division every opportunity. At the beginning of session we
brought themin, told them what the problem was, gave them every
opportunity to repair it, and [they] chose not to."

8:42:30 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 29, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said that she applauds the effort of the
bill, but she wonders if a better plan would be to nake the
application available early for people who are | eaving.

M5. BARTON replied that Representative Gardner's proposal could
perhaps be worked into the |aw She noted that the problemis
that the eligibility period covers the full year prior to the
di vidend, from January 1 to Decenber 31. I f sonmeone filled out
the application in August, "it's unknown what mght occur to
t hem bet ween August and January as far as their eligibility for
the dividend." The law requires that the applicant attest to
the fact that during the prior eligibility year certain things
have been true, she said.

8:44: 35 AM

CHAI R SEATON requested that for the next hearing, M. Barton
present data on the nunber of applications that have had
problens on this particular aspect of the PFD application "so we
have a good handl e on the nunbers and those that were denied, or
m ssed or filed |late under the current existing | aw "

8. 44:. 54 AM

M5. BARTON, in response to Representative Gatto, replied that
under the law, a person wuld be commtting fraud if he/she
filled out a spouse's application with the spouse's e-signature.

[ HB 201 was heard and hel d. ]

HB 183- CAVPAI GN FI NANCE: SHARED EXPENSES

8:45:53 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 183, "An Act relating to the wuse of canpaign
contributions for shared canpaign activity expenses and to
rei mbur senent of those expenses.”

8:45: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 183, said the bill is a comopn sense fix that affects
every person running for office in the state of Al aska. Under
current statute, he said, a vendor has to break a bill into
separate conponents and each candidate has to pay separately.
The proposed legislation wuld allow one candidate to pay the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 29, 2005



bill, as long as the other candidates involved conpletely
rei mburse their share of that expense within 48 hours. He said
the decision to nmake it 48 hours is reasonable. He i ndicated
that what usually happens is that one candidate wites the check
and the other candidates hand himher a check al nost
sinmul taneously for ease of record keeping. The bill would
clearly place the responsibility for canpaign finance conpliance
upon the candi dates thensel ves.

8:48: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said that Legislative Legal and Research
Services has recommended the format in which the bill is
witten, specifically listing what candidates "may not do." He
offered further details. He noted that there is a zero fiscal

note in the commttee packet.

8:49: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER agreed that the concept of the bill is
common sense. Notw t hstandi ng that, she directed attention to
page 2, line 17, which would require that the candidate [or

group participating in the activity] "receives, within 48 hours
after paynent of the expense, conplete reinbursenent of the
anpunt of canpaign contributions wused for paynents nade on
behalf of another candidate or group participating in the

activity." She said her concern is that if she were the
candidate responsible for receiving that noney, she can't
control when the others reinburse her. She said she can only

control when she asks them for the noney.

8:50: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said Al aska has sonme of the strictest
canpaign finance laws in the U S He stated his intent in
crafting the bill was to be careful not to create a |oophole

that would be too wide, but rather to nake a specific provision.
He explained, "W didn't want to have an open w ndow that would
allow candidate A to nake a paynent that candidate B could get
around to paying sonetinme, soneday, a nonth in the future."” He
said it's a judgnent call.

8:51: 03 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER clarified that the bill should specify

that the debtor is in violation in law if he/she doesn't pay
within 48 hours.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 29, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER sai d that's worth consi deri ng.
8:51:39 AM

CHAIR SEATON said he can foresee that 48 hours mght be [too
short] a period, depending on weekend timng and mail delivery
tinme.

8:51: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he is looking for a way a person may
attenpt to conceal a canpaign contribution by paying the other
person substantially nore than a fair share of the bill. He
said it would be much nore difficult to track because the
paynent is not made to the vendor and there is no paper trail.
He spoke of having 60 days to pay a vendor versus the 48 days to
pay a candi date. He asked, "This is an option rather than a
requi renent, right?"

8:53:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER confirnmed that "this just provides an
option." He said each expense needs to be docunmented by an
invoice, and each candidate is required to nmaintain the
docunentary evidence of his/her expenditures. The way the
canpaign law is structured, the prohibition is against naking a
contribution to another candidate or group. He added, "W had
to structure this exenption within the franework of an overall
| aw that prohibits making contributions.”™ Regarding getting the
rei nbursenent in a situation where there is a bill froma vendor
that can be unpaid for 60 days, the trigger, for exanple, would
be when the person pays on behalf of another candidate. In that
i nstance, he/she would then have 48 hours to be paid back. He
added, "We're not creating two different tine cycles here.”

8:54: 46 AM

BROOKE M LES, Executive Director, Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), noted that the comm ssion reviewed the bill
at its last neeting and understands the practical reasons for
it, since the current law is so restrictive. She said APCC is
"fine with the bill," although it takes a neutral position on
it. She said the bill speaks to candi dates and groups. She
pointed out that it is comon for political candidates to join
together to share a canpaign activity, but it is not comon for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 29, 2005



groups to do so. Because of that, she suggested only providing
t he exenption for candi dates.

8:57:16 AM

M5 MLES, in response to a question from Chair Seaton, said the
repaynent tine for expenditures that a candidate nmakes on
hi s/ her own behal f IS "reasonably consi st ent busi ness
practices.” In other words, whatever the vendor allows. She
noted that nost standard business practices don't go beyond 60
days.

8:57:38 AM

CHAI R SEATON, regarding "other timng," stated his understanding
that if a candidate nakes personal expenditures, his/her
canpai gn has to repay that amount within 72 hours.

8:58: 00 AM

M5. MLES answered that's correct. She added that if the
commttee thinks it would be nore reasonable to expand the 48
hours to a 72-hour period, she doesn't think that would cause
t he conm ssion concern either.

8:58:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how APOC would treat "in a tinmely
manner" rather than within 48 hours.

8:58: 23 AM

M5. MLES replied that APOCC wouldn't have a problem but she
stated concern that there may be public perception that
candidates are "landing" noney or giving noney to another
candi date, which she said are practices that those interested in
canpai gn finance reformare trying to stop.

8:59: 01 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked the sponsor if he has any objection to [Ms.
M| es' suggestion to only provide the exenption to candi dates].

8:59:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER noted that a conjunction is used:
"candi date or group". He said, "So, we have not in any way

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 29, 2005



i nvaded the other provisions of statute which specifically nake
those prohibitions against partnering between groups and
candi dates. "

CHAI R SEATON asked Representative Hawker if he could give sone
exanpl es of when there would be different groups that would "be
having this shared activity."

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER specul ated perhaps during joint fund
raising or a joint nedia expense.

9:01: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS suggested that a situation in which there
was a mmjority House fundraiser including several individua
candidates would be the mxing of a group and individual,
because there would be the opportunity for specific canpaign
donations to an individual candidate as well as for the House
majority.

9:01: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER stated his understanding that that sort of
an action would be prohibited under current statute. He said he
would defer to APOC for a nore correct interpretation. He
reiterated his enphasis of the conjunctive "or".

9:02:13 AM

M5. MLES reiterated that two or nore groups don't usually share
fundrai sing events very often. She indicated that she is fine
with the |anguage, particularly after hearing the clarification
from the sponsor t hat there is no intent to permt
group/ candi date conbi nations that would be problematic with the
ot her provisions of |aw.

9: 03: 29 AM

CHAI R SEATON, after ascertaining that there was no one else to
testify, closed public testinony.

9:03:47 AM
CHAI R SEATON encouraged a notion from sonmeone to change "48

hours”™ to "72 hours", because there exists a 72-hour tinmefrane
for candidates to reinburse thenselves and it seens [prudent] to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 29, 2005



keep the tinmes the sanme to avoid "inadvertent mx-ups of
tinmelines.”

9:04: 02 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved Anendnent 1, as foll ows:
On page 2, line 17:

Delete "wthin 48 hours”
Insert "within three working days”

9:04: 24 AM

CHAI R SEATON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

9:04:45 AM

M5. MLES, in response to a question from Chair Seaton
confirmed that the anount of tinme [that a candidate has to
rei nburse his/her canpaign] is 72 hours. She said she does not
see a problemw th using the phrase "within three working days".
9: 05: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO expl ained that "these things" often occur
on a Friday night, so this anmendnment would allow the individua
"sone opportunity besides the weekend. ™

9:05: 26 AM

REPRESENTATIVE HAWKER said as long as he has the tacit
concurrence from APCC that "within three working days" woul d not
be a problem he would be happy to defer to the w sdom of the
committee.

9: 05:49 AM

CHAI R SEATON renoved his objection to Arendnent 1. There being
no further objections, Amendnment 1 was adopted. He added that
t he amendnent is conceptual .

9: 06: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved Amendnent 2, as foll ows:

On page 2, line 17:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 29, 2005



Del ete "recei ves"
| nsert "submts"

On page 2, line 19:
Bet ween "on behal f of" and "candi date"

Del ete "anot her™
| nsert "the"

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said that would put the onus on the
person that owes the noney, not the one to whomit is owed.

9:07:49 AM
CHAI R SEATON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said hand delivery, postmark, and check
date woul d probably be covered under "submit".

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER sai d, as a candi date, she doesn't want to
be responsible for when soneone else repays her, only for when
she repays himor her.

9: 08: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER st at ed opposition to Amendnent 2. He said
it is inmportant to be cautious when naking changes within the
framework of existing statute to consider the entire franework
in which the | anguage i s being constructed.

The committee took an at-ease from 9:09:06 AM to 9:10:49 AM due
to technical difficulties.

9:10: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER restated for the record his opposition to
Amendnent 2. He explained that when changes are nmade in
statute, a consideration has to be made that |anguage is being
added within the overall construct of the I|arger canpaign
finance statutes. He noted that the "largest prefacing conment”
is on page 1, Iline 5, [in Section 1, which anmends] AS
15.13.112(b), and which read: "Canpaign contributions held by a
candidate or group nmay not be". Following that is a list of
things that the candidate may not do with his/her contributions.
[ Paragraph (7)] - the seventh prohibition in the list - shows
that [those canpaign contributions] may not be "used to nake

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 29, 2005



contributions to another candidate or to a group". He stated,
"This is the provision that has been interpreted to say that |
cannot nmake a paynment on behalf of a group of candidates,
because | would be contributing value or benefit to that group.”
Representative Hawker said the exenption that is necessary, in
order to be consistent wth the structure of statute, is that
the person making that paynent is the one who is in peril if
t hey make the paynent in violation of statute. He continued:

So, we create an exenption that protects the payor
candidate fromthat peril, by saying that they are not
held in violation of [Paragraph] (7) here if they
receive back from the other candidate ... the ratable
rei mbur senent . And it's inportant here, because the

candidate who is meking the paynent - placing
thenselves in peril - that is a risk they are assum ng
on thenselves. And ... if they, in fact, do not have

arrangenents nmade wth the other candidate to
receive that noney back, ... they have made ... an
illegal contribution, in that they are the risk-taker
in this piece. ... | believe the onus should be on
the paying candidate, not trying to shift this into
t he ot her candi date payi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER of fered a hypot heti cal exanpl e.
9:14: 37 AM

CHAI R SEATON mai nt ai ned hi s objection.

9:14: 48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO responded as foll ows:

| guess where |1'm going is: | didn't do it in 72
hours or three working days ..., and now |I'm in
violation. So, | figure, "Well, | can get out of this
if I sinply go directly to the vendor." But the other

guy's already paid the vendor. And now the vendor has
noney from the other guy and nme; now he has to nake a
rei mbursenent to nmy ... rich friend. [Are] there any
violations? Have | successfully gotten out of trouble
by doing that?

9:15: 19 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 29, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER responded that he is not in the position
to say how APOC would rule on a specific case. Not wi t hst andi ng
that, he surmised that in that case it would be legitimte to
interpret that the wealthy candidate in fact overpaid his/her
portion to the vendor and did not naeke a |oan, because "it had
been paid by the 'poor' candidate, who paid directly.” At that

point, it would be incunbent upon the rich candidate who had
overpaid the vendor to receive a reinbursenent from the vendor
He added, "I think the doctrine of comobn sense would apply in

the interpretation here."
9:16: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO clarified that a person could delay his/her
rei mbursenment by three nonths because the vendor is satisfied

He queried, "My rich friend is sinply willing to |eave hinself
in that hole of nme turning [up] three nonths later and paying

t he vendor?" Representative Gatto commented, "No, | can't do
that."

9:16: 27 AM

CHAI R SEATON clarified that "it has to be not only the anount,
but it has to be received, otherwise you as the ... rich
candidate are in violation." He said [Arendnent 2] would shift
the burden to the poor candidate whether or not he/she submts
or not, instead of saying that the rich candidate "only can do

this if they're going to get reinbursed within the three working
days."

9:16: 56 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said that's the heart of what she is

trying to get at, and she reiterated her previous statenents
about not being able to be in control of what soneone el se does.

9:17:13 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Gardner and Gatto
voted in favor of Anmendnent 2. Representati ves Ranras, ElKins,
and Seaton voted against it. Therefore, Amendnent 2 failed by a

vote of 2-3.
9:18: 41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to report [HB 183, as anended] out
of conmmi ttee wth i ndi vi dual recormendati ons and t he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 29, 2005



acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objections, CSHB
183(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Committee.

HB 170- PUB EMPLOYEES/ TEACHERS RETI REMENT BOARDS

9:19: 39 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 170, "An Act relating to the qualifications of public
menbers of the Public Enployees' Retirenent Board and the Al aska
Teachers' Retirenment Board.™

9:19:58 AM

HEATH HI LYARD, Staff to Representative Mke Kelly, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, on behalf of Representative Kelly, sponsor,
reviewed the previous discussion of the bill from prior
heari ngs.

9:21: 20 AM

PAT WELLINGTON, Elected nenber, Public Enployees' Retirenent
(PERS) Board since 1977, comended Representative Kelly for
realizing that "probably the solution to the problem is not
throwi ng out the two boards and starting all over again." In HB
170, the three public nmenbers would be appointed by the governor
and two would never have worked for "a participating politica

subdi vi sion." He stated that he is not certain of the purpose
of that. He said right now the governor has the authority to
appoint three nenbers to the PERS Board. He listed the current
appoi nted nenbers. He said Representative Kelly indicates in
the proposed bill that there "should be a need for sone
expertise in admnistration, finance, accounting, or econonc
devel opnent . " He opined that it is necessary to consider the

responsibility of the PERS Board, and to realize that the board
is not in the asset managenent end of the program

9:23:54 AM

MR, VELLI NGTON estimated 80 percent of the board's work centers
around appeals "from the adm nistrator.™ He explained, "If a
person is injured on a job and wants to apply for occupational
or nonoccupational disability, and the director turns them down,
the board hears those appeals with two doctors.” The board al so
hears admnistrative appeals regarding retirenent Dbenefits,
over paynments, or underpaynents. The board neets once a year to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 29, 2005



set the enployers' contribution rate, which is brought to the
board by the administration, with the input it has received from

its actuarial consultant - in this case, Mercer Human Resource
Consul ti ng. The board then acts wupon that consolidated
contribution rate. He stated that he has found the actuari al
science interesting, and that information is what the board nust
rely on. He said, "That 1is about the only area of
responsibility in the financial end that we would have any say
in." He predicted the experts that Representative Kelly wants

on the board would get bored "sitting there listening to a |ot
of disability appeals.™

9:25:42 AM

MR, VEELLI NGTON said the board al so advises the adm nistration on
health insurance for retirees; however, that program is solely
the responsibility of the comm ssioner of admnistration, who
has the sole authority to make whatever changes to the health

i nsurance he/she feels appropriate. He recognized that the
| argest current under funding is wthin the health insurance
conponent . He said that the board has worked wth the
adm nistration over the years to attenpt to reduce costs. He

said there is a health insurance subcommttee made up of two
menbers from PERS and two from TRS, and he has sat on that
subconm ttee for the last 10 years. He noted one of the noney-
saving ideas that has been instituted with the admnistration
has been the use of generic drugs and "an educational process,"”
which he indicated has resulted in an annual savings of about $1
mllion. He indicated that health insurance may rank even
hi gher in inportance than the paycheck to nost retirees.

9:27: 49 AM

MR, WVELLI NGTON concluded by reiterating that it isn't necessary
to put people on the board wth expertise as [proposed in the
bill], because "that's really not the area that this board deals
in "

9:28:21 AM

CHAIR SEATON, regarding the board setting the contribution
rates, asked M. Wellington if he would find it problematic if
the legislature were to establish a floor that the board could
not drop bel ow.

9:29: 08 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 29, 2005



MR, VEELLI NGTON answered no. He indicated that a nunber of years
ago the PERS board made reconmendations for a ceiling and fl oor.
He said the [TRS board] doesn't "have that sane provision.”™ He
said he thinks the ceiling is a good provision. M. Wellington
said he thinks there has been sonme m sconception that the PERS
board has reduced the actuarial rate below what has been
recommended by the consultant. He enphasized that the board has
never done that, but has, in fact, set the rate higher than
recommended. He explained, "W were trying to nmintain about
100- 102 percent funding for PERS and, had we adopted the rate as
reconmended by the admnistration at Mercer, we wuld have
dr opped bel ow that. And it was a collective decision of the
board not to do that."

9: 30: 26 AM

CHAI R SEATON said the committee is not famliar with how the
board works, and he indicated that he appreciates know ng that
90 percent of the board's tinme is involved in disability
appeal s.

9: 30: 39 AM

VR. VELLI NGTON noted that the board also does sone
adm ni strative appeals. He offered an exanple. He said he
thinks that that appellants who cone before the board feel that
they will get "a fair shake.”

9:31:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS recogni zed the service of M. Wellington
and of the |late Robert Boko, "a spiritual, powerful nenber who
|l eft an extraordinary mark on the ... TRS board.” He asked M.
Wellington to Iist the governors under which he has served.

9: 32: 40 AM

MR, WVELLI NGTON |isted Governors: Jay Hammond, Bill Sheffield,
St eve Cowper, Walter Hickel, Tony Know es, and Frank Murkowski .

9:32:59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS remarked that M. Wllington has seen the
PERS fund living and breathing for nany years.

9:33: 35 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 29, 2005



MR, VEELLI NGTON said conments are nmade that "we probably coul dn't
i nvest our way out of the predicament that we're in today," but
he said he thinks it's inportant to |ook at the whole picture.
He said when the board considered a hybrid programin the past,
it was basically told to stay on track. He said he thinks a
better approach woul d have been to | ook at the whole system and
to conduct a study to consider the nedical portion of the
pr ogram He said the state's participation in the SBS program
costs about $40 mllion per year, and perhaps there could be
some reduction in that. He nentioned near-term md-term and
l ong-term results, and said he | ooks at defined contribution as
a long-term [solution]. M. Wellington said, "I think a better
approach would have been to study this, Ilook at what's
avai l abl e, and then reconmmend the changes.” He said he did not
feel confortable in recormmending a "title only-type situation.”
He said, as a fornmer |aw enforcenent officer, he would not "sign
off* on anything he had not had the opportunity to study in

detail . He admtted that he nmy be overcautious, but said he
has seen those who are not [cautious] get into trouble. He said
he thinks the board would support a change, but not until it

sees "what it would look |ike."

9:37: 08 AM

MR, VELLINGTON, in response to a question from Representative
Ranras, spoke of his former career in |law enforcenent. He noted
that he also sits on the Alaska State Pension |nvestnent Board
[ ASPI B] .

9:37:.30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS asked M. Wellington if the PERS board is
| ooki ng out for the worker or the institution.

9:38: 20 AM

MR. VEELLI NGTON responded that the board | ooks out for the system
and the worker. He said, "W're a finder of facts, and devel op
the facts as presented. W do take in ... - through

consideration - the evidence that the worker brings forth to us,
but the bottomline is that our decisions have to stand the test
of tinme, because there is an appeal process." He noted that,
since he's been on the board, [both] the state [and] the
appel l ant has had the right to appeal to the superior court. He
offered further details. He said he knows a lot of people in
Al aska, but doesn't let that interfere wwth his work.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 29, 2005



9:39:40 AM

CHAI R SEATON asked M. Wllington to describe the differences
bet ween the PERS and TRS Boards.

9:39: 54 AM

MR. WELLINGTON said the TRS Board includes certified teachers
and deals only wth occupational disability, while the PERS

Board addr esses bot h occupat i onal and non- occupati onal
disability. He said historically there have been two separate
boards, and their constituency is a little different. He noted

that the TRS Board is not as busy, because they don't have the
sanme anmount of appeals. He said the boards could be conbined if
the new single board was nade bigger; however, he said he
doesn't know that "bigger is always better.” He indicated that
the current boards function well and "it doesn't cost a lot to
neet . "

9:41: 20 AM

MR, VELLINGTON, in response to a question from Representative
Ranras, noted that the [PERS] Board neets 4-5 tines a year.

Appeals take up a vast mmjority of the neeting. The upcom ng
neeting is scheduled to |ast four days. He offered an exanple
of a fireman working for the nunicipality who fell off a |adder,
but had preexisting conditions from a football injury. The

board decided that falling off the |adder was not sufficient
cause for disability, but the court told the board to reconsider
the case under nore liberal interpretations, whereby the fireman
was given the disability. He offered nore exanples. He said,
"Every once in awhile the systemhas to step up to the plate and
say, 'W made a m stake.'"

9:44: 39 AM

CHAI R SEATON offered his understanding that every nenber of the
current board has been enployed at one tinme w th PERS.

9:44: 49 AM

MR. VELLI NGTON noted that Bronk Jorgensen has never been in the
system He said the governor can appoint whonever he/she wants.
He said being a board nenber is a time-consumng job; for every
day spent in hearings, hours are spent at hone in preparation,
W t hout conpensati on.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 29, 2005



9: 45: 48 AM

CHAI R SEATON offered his understanding that currently there are
no PERS enpl oyers represented [on the board] from nmunicipalities
or school districts.

9:46: 02 AM
MR. VEELLI NGTON said, "Not currently."”
9:46: 07 AM

CHAIR SEATON asked M. Wllington if he would think it a
positive nove toward diversity of opinion if there was a
requi renment for "sonme participation by an enployer wthin

PERS. "

9:46: 17 AM

MR.  WVELLI NGTON responded that he thinks that would be good,
because people don't feel they have a voice at the table.

CHAI R SEATON, in response to a request by Representative Ranras
and the ensuing remarks by M. WlIlington, suggested that a
bi ography of each of the PERS Board nenbers could be provided to
the commttee.

9:51:36 AM

JAY DULANY, testifying on behalf of hinself, noted that he is a
menber of the Retired Public Enpl oyees Association (RPEA). He
stated that it would be difficult to inprove on the current
makeup of the boards, and keeping those with experience in the
system of f the boards would be unw se. In particular, he said

renmoving the ability to elect the two nenbers on the PERS board
"kind of flies in the face of our representative denocracy.”
Furthernore, he stated his belief that the TRS board should be
changed to allow two elected nenbers. Regardi ng having an
enpl oyer on the boards, he said the governor certainly could
appoi nt an enployer; however, he doesn't see a problem wth
speci fying that an enpl oyer be on the board.

9:53: 09 AM
KEVIN RI TCH E, Al aska Munici pal League (AM.), nentioned a recent

nmeeting that had taken place. He stated that about 63 percent
of PERS and TRS systens are in schools, nunicipalities, and the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 29, 2005



uni versity. Currently, he noted, there is no structural
connection between those three to the program so "this is a
program which is obviously key to enployers.” He said it would
certainly be reasonable to add seats.

9:55: 09 AM

MR RITCHIE, in response to a question from Chair Seaton
regarding conbining the two boards, said AM. has been neeting
for about six nonths, and that issue has not been addressed. He
stated his personal experience with "this board"” is that it has
a very open system For exanple, he said several nonths ago AML
was invited to the table to work through the Mercer information.
He concluded, "I do agree that the boards are functioning very
openly [and] very well right now "

9: 55: 59 AM

SAM TRIVETTE, President, Retired Public Enployees of Al aska
(RPEA), revealed that his involvenent with RPEA began in 1998.
He said RPEA represents thousands of the ten thousands of
retirees from PERS, TRS, and other public retirenent systens,
and opposes the proposed legislation for a nunber of reasons.
He paraphrased his witten testinony as foll ows:

For all of the public nenbers the governor has the
authority to appoint, this bill would, for no good
reason, exclude well over 50,000 Alaskans from being
considered for the positions, just because they have
at some tinme in their |lives, worked for a public
enpl oyer. Furthernore, the bill excludes nunerous
ot her Al askans from appoi ntnment that have significant
public sector experience - but not private sector
experience - in admnistration, financing, accounting
or econom ¢ devel opnent.

Not having seen a [sponsor's] explanation of the bill,
it is wunclear to nme what the purposes of these

sections were. Having attended numerous PERS & TRS
board neetings in the last 5 years, ... | understand
what their duties and responsibilities are and what
they spend nost of their time on. A majority of the
[board's] tine is spent hearing appeals from nenbers
of the system The board nenbers need to be very

famliar wth Alaska enployee and retiree laws &
benefits, and how the systemreal ly works.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 29, 2005



Let nme say that [in] ny observations of current and
past PERS/ TRS Board nenbers at their neetings in the
| ast half decade, an observer would not know who was
el ected, who was appointed, who was a fornmer public
enpl oyee or not, based upon their conments and actions

at the neeting. They all wunderstood their statutory
and fiduciary responsibilities, no nmatter what the
i ssue was. I would add that the nenbers wthout

public enployee experience tended to |ean upon board
menbers with the public enployee experience to effect
the best possible outcone for the state and any
i ndi vi dual s invol ved.

The boards have a history of fair and equitable
heari ngs. Many potential court appeals are avoided,
as enployees and retirees are nore accepting of even
adverse decisions when they know the board nenbers
understand the system and the appellant believes they
are getting reasonabl e consi deration.

Clearly, having board nenbers with public enploynent
experience has enhanced the ability of the state to
make many changes to the retirenent benefits system

that has resulted in mny mllions of dollars of
savings in recent years. Wthout [the] excellent
cooperation of the current [Dvision of] Retirement &
Benefits staff ..., retired PERS and TRS board

menbers, and RPEA volunteers, the fund bal ances woul d
be in nmuch worse shape today.

... I"’m assumng this bill does not tanper wth the
two ... elected ... PERS Board nenbers, and | think if
it were to tanper wth that ... you would find
yourself in a potential dimnishnment of benefits
situation, which, if that were the case, ... would

certainly be subject to |l egal chall enges.

|’ve worked with organizations for over 40 years ....
In spite of individual PERS and TRS Board nenber

views, |’ve not seen a group - even with changes over
time and many new board nenbers of the l|ast 2-plus
years - that has better served the interest of ... al

of the citizens of Al aska. They are efficient - they

use their tinme wisely; they are effective - they find
ways to contain and reduce costs; and the are behol den
to no one - including enployers, retirees, [the
Division of] Retirement & Benefits, [and] consultants.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 29, 2005



10: 01:18 AM

MR. TRI VETTE, regarding conbining the two boards, said he is not
an expert but has spent tinme talking with TRS Board nmenbers. He
pointed out that PERS and TRS statutes were enacted at different
tinmes and the boards have different types of teachers. In terns
of how the noney is paid out of the system TRS and PERS are
quite different; the average paynent for PERS is approximtely
$1,500, while the average paynent for TRS is $2,500. He noted
that many of the university enployees fall under PERS, rather
than TRS. He said he doesn't want to tell the commttee nenbers
that it would be inpossible to conbine the two boards, but he
suggested they wi thhold judgnment and raise those questions with
sone of the other PERS and ... TRS board nenbers that would be
in town next week. He al so suggested that the committee speak
with some of the fornmer nenbers of the PERS and TRS boards; he
estimated there are probably five or six nenbers that have been
replaced in the |ast couple of years. Anot her person of note,
he said, would be the board attorney, who is not a nenber of the
board, but has been working wth the board for many years.

10: 02: 55 AM

CHAI R SEATON recogni zed that Representative Mke Kelly, sponsor,
had just joined the commttee. After discerning that
Representative Kelly did not wish to add further testinony at
this time, he closed public testinony.

10: 03: 45 AM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the House State Affairs Standing
Committee draft for a PERS/TRS bill should be read across the
House floor today or tonorrow He discussed further cal endar
I ssues.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
10: 04: 13 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- March 29, 2005



